
 

Thurrock - An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage 
and excited by its diverse opportunities and future 

 

General Services Committee 
 
 
The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 15 June 2021 
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex RM17 6SL 
 
There is very limited space for press and public to physically attend this meeting due 
to social distancing requirements. We advise anyone wishing to physically attend to 
book a seat in advance via direct.democracy@thurrock.gov.uk to ensure a place. 
 
Arrangements have been made for the press and public to watch the meeting live via 
the Council’s online webcast channel: www.thurrock.gov.uk/webcast 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Rob Gledhill (Chair), John Kent (Vice-Chair), Mark Coxshall, Shane 
Hebb, Victoria Holloway, Barry Johnson, and Fraser Massey 
 
 
Substitutes: 
 
Councillors Jack Duffin, Deborah Huelin, Andrew Jefferies, Luke Spillman, and Lynn 
Worrall 
 

   

 
Agenda 

 
Open to Public and Press 

 

  Page 
 

  
 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 6 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of General Services 
Committee meeting held on 3 March 2021. 
 

 

3.   Items of Urgent Business 
 

 

mailto:direct.democracy@thurrock.gov.uk


 
 

 To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B 
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

4.   Declarations of Interests  
 

 

5.   Response to Motion at Council 27 January 2021 - Request for 
Committee  
 

7 - 18 

6.   Constitutional Change - Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board  
 

19 - 22 

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies: 
 
Please contact Matthew Boulter, Democratic & Governance Services Manager and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer by sending an email to 
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk 
 
Agenda published on: 7 June 2021 
 



Information for members of the public and councillors 
 

Access to Information and Meetings 

 

Due to current government guidance on social-distancing and the COVID-19 virus, 
there will be limited seating available for the press and members of the public to 
physically attend council meetings. Anyone wishing to attend physically should email 
direct.democracy@thurrock.gov.uk to book a seat. Alternatively, council meetings can 
be watched live via the Council’s online webcast channel: 
www.thurrock.gov.uk/webcast  

 

Members of the public have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no 
later than 5 working days before the meeting, and minutes once they are published. 

Recording of meetings 

This meeting will be live streamed and recorded with the video recording being 
published via the Council’s online webcast channel: www.thurrock.gov.uk/webcast  

   

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at 
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk 

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 

council and committee meetings 

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because 
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local 
communities. 

Thurrock Council Wi-Fi 

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device 
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet. 

 You should connect to TBC-CIVIC 

 Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network. 

 A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before 
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to 
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept. 

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only. 

Page 1

mailto:direct.democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
http://www.thurrock.gov.uk/webcast
http://www.thurrock.gov.uk/webcast
mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk


Evacuation Procedures 

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest 
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk. 

How to view this agenda on a tablet device 

  

 

You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry 
Playbook with the free modern.gov app. 
 

 
Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged, 
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services. 
 
To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this 
meeting, Councillors should: 
 

 Access the modern.gov app 

 Enter your username and password 
 

 
 

Page 2

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB


DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence 

 
Helpful Reminders for Members 
 

 Is your register of interests up to date?  

 In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?  

 Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly?  

 
When should you declare an interest at a meeting? 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet, 

Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or  

 If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is 

before you for single member decision? 

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting  

 relate to; or  

 likely to affect  
any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?  
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of: 

 your spouse or civil partner’s 

 a person you are living with as husband/ wife 

 a person you are living with as if you were civil partners 

where you are aware that this other person has the interest. 
 
A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of the 

Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests. 

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so  
significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant 
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest. 

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a pending 
notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest for inclusion in the register  

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous 
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must: 

- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of 
the matter at a meeting;  

- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the 
meeting; and 

- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted 
upon 

If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for 
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further 

steps 

If the interest is not already in the register you must 
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring 

Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature 
of the interest to the meeting 

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough 
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature 

Non- pecuniary Pecuniary 

You may participate and vote in the usual 
way but you should seek advice on 
Predetermination and Bias from the 

Monitoring Officer. 

Page 3



 

 

Our Vision and Priorities for Thurrock 

 

An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by 
its diverse opportunities and future. 

 
 
1. People – a borough where people of all ages are proud to work and play, live and 

stay 

 

 High quality, consistent and accessible public services which are right first time 
 

 Build on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary and faith groups 
to work together to improve health and wellbeing  
 

 Communities are empowered to make choices and be safer and stronger 
together  

 
 
2. Place – a heritage-rich borough which is ambitious for its future 
 

 Roads, houses and public spaces that connect people and places 
 

 Clean environments that everyone has reason to take pride in 
 

 Fewer public buildings with better services 
 
 
 
3. Prosperity – a borough which enables everyone to achieve their aspirations 
 

 Attractive opportunities for businesses and investors to enhance the local 
economy 
 

 Vocational and academic education, skills and job opportunities for all 
 

 Commercial, entrepreneurial and connected public services 
 

Page 4



Minutes of the Meeting of the General Services Committee held on 3 March 
2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present: 
 

Councillors Robert Gledhill (Chair), John Kent (Vice-Chair), 
Shane Hebb and Fraser Massey 
 

  

Apologies: Councillors Mark Coxshall and Bukky Okunade 
 

In attendance: Sheila Murphy, Corporate Director Children’s Services 
Mykela Pratt, Strategic Lead – HR, Resourcing and 
Improvement 
Lucy Tricker, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
 

  

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting was being 
recorded and live-streamed onto the Council’s website.  

 
85. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the General Services Committee held on 18 February 2021 
were approved as a true and correct record.  
 

86. Items of Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

87. Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

88. Interview for Interim Assistant Director Children's Social Care and Early 
Help  
 
The Committee agreed to go into exempt session at 6.02pm. 
 
The Committee undertook the relevant interviews for the position.   
 
RESOLVED: That Janet Simon be appointed as Interim Assistant 
Director Children’s Social Care and Early Help.   
 
The Corporate Director of Children’s Services left the meeting at 7.59pm. 
 

89. Interview for Interim Assistant Director Lower Thames Crossing and 
Project Delivery  
 
The Committee undertook the relevant interviews for the position.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
RESOLVED: That Jonathan Judah be appointed as Interim Assistant 
Director Lower Thames Crossing and Project Delivery.   
 
 
 
The meeting finished at 7.50 pm 
 

Approved as a true and correct record 
 
 

CHAIR 
 
 

DATE 
 
 

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact 
Democratic Services at Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 6

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk




15 June 2021  ITEM: 5 

General Services Committee 

Response to Motion at Council 27 January 2021 – Request 
for Committee 

Wards and communities affected:  

All 

Key Decision:  

Non Key 

Report of: Ian Hunt, Assistant Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 

Accountable Director: Lyn Carpenter, Chief Executive 

This report is Public 

 
Executive Summary 
 
At its meeting of the 21 January 2021 Council passed a resolution to request a report 
for the formation of a Prevent Committee. This report responds to that resolution and 
makes recommendations which enable General Services Committee to consider the 
formation of a committee and make recommendations to Council. 
 
The report highlights related matters in relation to the proposals.  
 
1. Recommendations 
 
1.1 That the General Services Committee recommends to Council 

establishes a Hidden and Extreme Harms Prevention Committee, with 
the following provisions:  

 
1.1.1 That the Terms of Reference set out in Appendix A be adopted; 
 
1.1.2 That, in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government (Committees and Political 
Groups) Regulations 1990, the allocation of seats to political groups, on 
the Committee, be approved as Conservative 4, Labour 2; 

 
1.1.3 That the nominations of Political Groups to the Committee, to be 

received at the meeting, be approved; 
 
1.1.4  That nominations be received at the meeting for the positions of Chair 

and Vice Chair of the Committee and approved; 
 
1.1.5 That the Prevent Violent Extremism Members Working Group, as 

referred to in Chapter 12 of the Constitution, be formally disbanded; 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5





 
1.1.6  That the amendments to Chapter 1, 5 and 12 of the Constitution, as set 

out in paragraphs 3.7, 3.17 and 3.24, be approved; and 
 
1.1.7  That the Assistant Director Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer 

be authorised to make the necessary consequential amendments to the 
Constitution.  

 
2. Introduction and Background 
 
2.1 At its meeting of the 21 January 2021 Full Council approved a motion 

proposed by Councillor Anderson in the following terms: 
 

Given the great importance the Conservative government has placed on 
the “prevent” agenda in terms of countering extremism, and the need to 
consider all of the human trafficking and modern day slavery implications 
of illegal entry and Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children, especially 
in areas with a large waterfront or port industry, the chamber wishes to 
have an appropriate member’s forum for “prevent”. 
 
Therefore, following the procedure used to constitute the Corporate 
Parenting Committee as a formal Council Committee, we instruct the 
monitoring officer to present relevant terms of reference for the next 
meeting of the Full Council to help better protect our communities and 
those who come into our care. 
 

2.2 This report responds to this motion and provides a potential structure for 
Members to consider.  

 
2.3 The motion refers to a number of different frameworks and regimes which the 

Council has responsibilities in relation to: 
 

 Prevent; 

 Human trafficking and modern day slavery; and 

 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 
 
2.4 These areas of work are already subject to Member engagement through a 

number of different forums; the formation of a new committee could unify work 
in relation to this agenda and enable a holistic view to be taken, however it 
also has the risk of duplicating effort. The following sections highlight the key 
responsibilities of the Council and the existing scrutiny and Member 
responsibilities.  

 
Prevent: 

 
2.5 The Council has a duty under the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015, in 

the exercise of its functions to have “due regard to the need to prevent people 
from being drawn into terrorism”. This duty is shared with a number of other 
public bodies including criminal justice agencies including prisons, educational 

Page 8





and childcare establishments, health and the police. The Council updated its 
Prevent Strategy last year publishing the 2020/23 strategy in October 2020. 

 
2.6 Prevent addresses all forms of terrorism. According to the 2020 Channel Duty 

guidance the most significant of these threats is currently from terrorist 
organisations associated with Al Qa’ida, Daesh, terrorists associated with 
extreme right-wing ideologies and lone actors inspired by such organisations. 
Clearly this list evolves over time and is not exhaustive.  

 
2.7 The recently published Home Office Prevent handbook for Elected Members 

states: “Elected Members are crucial for successful delivery of Prevent, by 
overseeing and scrutinising local plans which ensure that citizens are kept 
safe, and vulnerable people are given safeguarding support from the harms of 
radicalisation. Elected Members also play a critical role in representing 
members of their local community. They act as both a voice of local citizens; 
raising issues and concerns, whilst speaking on behalf of the Local Authority 
to communicate how policies and programmes operate.”  

 
2.8 The handbook outlines three key roles for Elected Members in shaping and 

delivering Prevent activity locally: 
 

1) Leadership and Direction; 
2) Community Dialogue; and 
3) Scrutiny: Elected Members may also consider their role in providing 

transparency and accountability in delivering Prevent through formal scrutiny 
procedures. By holding to account the local delivery of Prevent, improvements 
can be made to implementation, and communities can be reassured by 
increased transparency. 

 
2.9 The Council’s existing structures for the management of its obligations for 

prevent include:  
 

 Leadership from the Leader of the Council within his Portfolio 
Responsibilities; 

 Formal Member scrutiny through: 
o Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
o Prevent Violent Extremism Members Working Group; 
o Childrens Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

 The Community Safety Partnership; 
o Overseeing both the Prevent Strategic Board and the Channel 

Panel.  
 
2.10 Counter Extremism and Terrorism (and within this the Prevent agenda) is one 

of the five priorities of the Community Safety Partnership, the scrutiny and 
oversight of the partnership is formally undertaken by the Cleaner, Greener 
and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   

 
Human Trafficking and Modern Day Slavery: 

 

Page 9





2.11 Human Trafficking and modern day slavery is nationally led by the National 
Crime Agency under the auspices of the Home Office. The Modern Slavery 
Act 2015 created specific criminal offences and codified the law in this area. 

 
2.12 The 2015 Act placed a specific duty on Local Authorities to report to the Home 

Office where it has reasonable grounds to believe that an individual may be 
the victim of slavery or human trafficking. Given that these issues are criminal 
matters the Councils general duties in relation to crime and disorder would 
also be relevant. Essex Police has its own lead units for this area of work.  

 
2.13 The Community Safety Partnership, treats this as part of its Violence and 

Vulnerability priority and considers and looks at the wider work across the 
partnership in respect of these issues. This is included in the oversight work of 
the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The 
Leaders Portfolio of Public Protection and Anti-Social Behaviour provides 
leadership in this area.  

 
2.14 Within the remit of the wider Community Safety Partnership there are linked 

Port Watch meetings, which support collaborative work in this area. 
 
2.15 The Council is further engaged in the national referral mechanism and the 

wider safeguarding of victims through the Councils formal safeguarding 
functions (for both Adults and Children). The Councils processes are 
undertaken in line with the common Southend Essex and Thurrock 
Safeguarding policies and procedures.  

 
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children: 

 
2.16 The Council has a responsibility for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 

(UASC). An unaccompanied asylum seeking child is defined as an individual 
who is: under 18 years of age when the claim is submitted; applying for 
asylum in their own right; separated from both parents and is not being cared 
for by an adult who in law or by custom has responsibility to do so. 

 
2.17 Where a UASC is within Thurrock they are entitled to the same local authority 

support as any other looked after child, and our ambitions for these children 
are the same: to have a safe and stable placement, to receive the care that 
they need to thrive, and the support they need to fulfil their educational and 
other outcomes. In this respect the Council owes the exact same duties of 
care and enquiry as it would with any other child in care. 

 
2.18 The Portfolio Holder for Children and Adult Social Care, has the responsibility 

for Member leadership in relation to this issue. The Corporate Parenting 
Committee, is established to provide additional Member support to the 
Portfolio Holder to ensure that all parts of the Council work together to provide 
the best possible service for looked after children, this includes those 
categorised as UASC. The Corporate Parenting Committee is not decision 
making but advises the portfolio holder. There is further formal scrutiny of the 
function through the Childrens Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 10





 
2.19 It should be noted that whilst UASC are claiming asylum, it does not mean 

that there is a direct link to either the Prevent or Modern Slavery and Human 
Trafficking frameworks highlighted above.  

 
3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options 
 
3.1 Members have requested that proposals for a new committee are prepared 

for consideration. Members have three principal options. 

 Retention of the existing arrangements; 

 Modification of the existing arrangements without the formation of a 
new committee; or 

 The formation of a new committee. 
 
3.2 Members may consider that the existing arrangements provide an adequate 

basis for their engagement in this agenda, equally with the additional detail 
provided Members may consider that there is a need for some modification of 
the existing arrangements. As noted above all three principal areas of work 
are covered by other committees, although not with a single focus as is 
proposed.  

 
3.3 A new committee with a more specific focus has the capacity to provide 

additional support to the Council and particularly relevant Portfolio Holders, 
whilst noting that this will mean that there are overlaps and an element of 
duplication. This duplication can be managed through effective management 
of the committees work programme.   

 
3.4 The following parts of this report are prepared to set out the considerations 

required of Council if it wishes to establish a new committee, these are set out 
below.  

 
Terms of Reference for a new Committee: 

 
 
3.5 The Council will need to set formal terms of reference for the committee. In 

recognising that this has been proposed along the model of the Corporate 
Parenting Committee, the key clarity that the committee is advisory to the 
relevant Portfolio Holders and not decision making has been replicated.  

 
3.6 The proposed committee terms of reference are set out in Appendix A. If 

approved these will be included in Chapter 5 of the Constitution with 
appropriate cross referencing of the committees formation and composition in 
Part 1 section 1.1. 

 
3.7 Having reviewed the aspiration that this committee has a remit to consider a 

range of subjects and not just Prevent it is proposed that the committee be 
called the “Hidden and Extreme Harms Prevention Committee” this would 
mitigate the risk of confusion between a specific national framework and this 
specific committee.  

Page 11





 
3.8 The motion has proposed broadly following the approach of the Corporate 

Parenting Committee in terms of its approach and format. The committee 
whilst being able to consider the work and the approach of the Council would 
not benefit from the wider statutory framework underpinning a formal Scrutiny 
Committee. Equally it should be recognised that the committee does not have 
formal decision making powers, although through its work it may highlight 
areas where it considers that either comments or proposals ought to be 
directed to a Portfolio Holder or a relevant Scrutiny Committee.   

 
Membership: 

 
3.9 It is proposed that the committee is comprised of 6 members. The Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 requires that seats on committees and 
sub-committees should be allocated in proportion, insofar as is reasonably 
practicable, to the proportion of seats held by each group on the Council as a 
whole.  

 
3.10 The political balance of the Council was set at the Annual Meeting of Council. 

If the committee is approved this would increase the total number of seats on 
committees from 81 to 87. With the current political proportions on the Council 
also taking into account the wider proportions across all committees this 
would give the following committee seats: 

  Conservative:  4 
  Labour:   2 
 
3.11 If Council determines that it wishes to form the committee, then it will need to 

determine the allocation of seats as well as seeking and considering 
nominations from Group Leaders to these positions.  

 
3.12 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 28.1 in addition to appointing the 

Members of the Committee Council will also asked to consider the 
appointment of Substitute Members in equal numbers to those appointed by 
each group.  

 
3.13 In considering appointments Council will also be asked to appoint a Chair and 

Vice Chair of the committee.  
 

Public Participation: 
 
3.14 The Committee will if established be subject to the formal requirements of 

public participation as set in the legislation, therefore the meeting will be open 
to the public to attend unless the business of the meeting warrants moving 
into private session.  

 
3.15 It is expected that there will be times when there are specific matters where 

there is a need to move into private session given the information being 
discussed, given the context it is anticipated that this will be a frequent 

Page 12





element of these meetings. This will be managed in accordance with the 
legislation and the Council constitution.  

 
3.16 Article 3 of the Constitution provides for specific rights of Public Participation 

for specified committees, this includes Public Questions, Statements, and 
Petitions. It is proposed that in Line with the Corporate Parenting Committee 
this committee is: 

1) Included in the List of Committees in Article 3 Appendix A 1.1 where 
Public participation is permitted; and  

2) Included in the List of Committees in Article 3 Annex 3 1.5 as a 
committee where petitions can be presented. 

 
Allowances for the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee: 

 
3.17 The Council is required to consider whether it wishes for the Chair and Vice 

Chair of the Committee to be eligible to receive a special responsibility 
allowance. If the Council decides that the positions should receive an 
allowance, it will be necessary to engage the Joint Independent Remuneration 
Panel to make recommendations in this regard to a future meeting of Council.  

 
3.18  The precedent from the formation of the Corporate Parenting Committee was 

that Council did not proceed with a proposal for special responsibility 
allowances for the Chair and Vice Chair of the new committee until the next 
time the Joint Independent Remuneration Panel was called upon to review 
Special Responsibility Allowances.  

 
3.19 It is proposed that this precedent is followed as this will give the committee 

time to establish a work programme and for there to be a clear understanding 
of the role and responsibilities required of the Chair and Vice Chair.  

 
Prevent Violent Extremism Members Working Group: 

 
3.20 The Council has an established Member working group on Prevent, this was 

formed at the request of the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. This working group’s remit would be duplicated within the 
role of this committee.  

 
3.21 Given the overlap and duplication it is proposed that this working group is 

disbanded and its work transferred to the new Committee. 
 
3.22 If the option to do this is undertaken then the group would need to be 

removed from the list of Outside Bodies in the Constitution Chapter 12 Part 2 
table 5. Equally the Member appointments to the group by Council would be 
terminated.  

 
4. Reasons for Recommendation 
 

Page 13





4.1 This report responds to the Motion of Councillor Anderson at the meeting of 
Council on the 27 January 2021, with the requested proposals for a new 
committee.  

 
5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable) 
 
5.1 This report is provided to General Services Committee in advance of Council 

for consideration and recommendation to Council.  
 
6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 

impact 
 
6.1 These proposals link to the Council’s People priority, particularly in respect to 

the priority that “communities are empowered to make choices and be safer 
and stronger together”. 

 
6.2 It should be noted that the Council as a key partner of the Community Safety 

partnership is also supporting its priority focus in regards to Tackling Violence 
and Vulnerability as well as Counter Extremism and Terrorism.  

 
7. Implications 
 
7.1 Financial 

 
Implications verified by: Sean Clark 

 Corporate Director of Finance, Governance 
and Property 

 
There are no direct financial implications from this report. Should there be a 
decision to seek special responsibility allowances for the Chair and Vice Chair 
of a committee this would be an unbudgeted additional cost to the Council.  
 

7.2 Legal 
 
Implications verified by: Ian Hunt 

 Assistant Director Law and Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 

 
The legal implications are addressed within the report.  

 
7.3 Diversity and Equality 

 
Implications verified by: Rebecca Lee 

 Team Manager - Community Development and 
Equalities 

 
There are no direct equality or diversity implications in the decision to 
establish (or not) a committee of Council. 

Page 14





 
The work of the Council in supporting vulnerable residents and through the 
Community Safety Partnership is supported by full equality impact 
assessments and ongoing monitoring.  
 

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children) 
 
As highlighted above the Council has a number of statutory obligations in 
respect of the prevention of illegal activities, this report addresses the 
interactions between Member engagement and oversight leading to the 
Councils responsibilities for the consideration of Crime and Disorder.  

 
8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location 

on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright): 

 

 Council’s Constitution https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/constitution-of-
council/thurrock-council-constitution 

 Community Safety Partnership Annual Delivery Plan 
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/community-safety-partnership/thurrock-
community-safety-partnership 

 
 
9. Appendices to the report 
 
 Appendix A – Proposed Terms of Reference  
 
 
Report Author: 
 
Ian Hunt 

Assistant Director Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer 

 

Page 15

https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/constitution-of-council/thurrock-council-constitution
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/constitution-of-council/thurrock-council-constitution
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/community-safety-partnership/thurrock-community-safety-partnership
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/community-safety-partnership/thurrock-community-safety-partnership


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

3. Hidden and Extreme Harms Prevention Committee 

Appointed by: 

The Council under section 102 
of the Local Government Act 
1972 

Number of Elected Members: 

Six 

Chair and Vice-Chair 
appointed by: 

The Council 

Political Proportionality: 

The elected Members shall be appointed in 
accordance with Political Proportionality 

Quorum: 

Three elected Members 

Co-opted Members to be appointed by 
Council: 

None 

Functions determined by Council: 

1. Purpose: 

1.1 The Committee exists to ensure that all elements of the Council work 
together to ensure that the Council is fulfilling its duties regarding: 

(a) Prevent 

(b) Human Trafficking and Modern Day Slavery 

(c) Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 

1.2 The Committee will serve to aid elected members to drive the improvement of 
the services involved forward including by interacting with partners and 
stakeholders. 

2. Objectives: 

2.1 To promote the role of all councillors and support the Council to promote 
Prevent objectives through: 
(a) Ensuring that other elected members are fully briefed on key work in 

Prevent and how it will affect other portfolio areas 
(b) Provide a steer on reaching difficult decisions on those issues that 

involve competing public interests or may prove contentious in an 
area 

(c) Encouraging open discussion and transparent decision making 
(d) Ensuring prevent priorities are reflected in the work of the Local 

Authority  

2.2 To provide scrutiny and challenge of Prevent delivery. 

2.3 To promote the role of all councillors and support the Council to engage with 
the national strategy and work in respect of Human Trafficking and Modem 
Day Slavery. 

2.4 To support the Corporate Parenting Committee in the Councils management 
and care of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) through: 

Page 17



Appendix A 

(a) Receiving effective 'preventative' and qualitative information in 
order to hold senior officers to account in relation to meeting the 
needs and improving the outcomes of UASC. 

(b) To oversee the strategy for UASC and ensure that the various 
elements within it are being delivered in a holistic and 
comprehensive way by all responsible. 

2.5 To bring together members/officers/representatives of partner agencies with 
relevant responsibilities, with the Chair having discretion to extend invitations 
to attend meetings of the Committee as appropriate. 

2.6 To make recommendations to the relevant executive decision maker where 
responsibility for that particular function rests with the executive 

2.7 To report to the relevant scrutiny committee any matter which it believes that 
committee should give consideration to. 

2.8 The Committee shall be responsible for setting its own work programme, 
taking into account the wishes and preferences of the members of the 
Committee, together with any suggestions from Officers of the Council for 
particular topics to be considered. 

Matters reserved for decision: 

There are no specific matters reserved to this committee. 

The reason for this is that the role and function of the committee is to review and 
monitor the council's role in relation to the three areas set out in 1.1. This involves 
the participation of members on a cross political group committee. However any 
specific actions the committee might identify as necessary would be executive 
functions and need to be taken by a cabinet decision maker, in accordance with 
cabinet responsibility for functions. 

Functions determined by Statute: 

None 

 

Page 18





15 June 2021  ITEM: 6 

General Services Committee 

Constitutional Change – Thurrock Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

Wards and communities affected:  

All 

Key Decision:  

No 

Report of: Councillor Rob Gledhill, Leader of the Council  

Accountable Assistant Director: Ian Hunt, Assistant Director Law and 
Governance 

Accountable Director: Lyn Carpenter, Chief Executive 

This report is Public 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report details a change to the terms of reference of the Thurrock Health and 
Wellbeing Board to allow greater flexibility in the membership of the committee. 
 
The Board is a statutory committee of the Council set up under the auspices of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012 and the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.  
 
The membership of the committee is in part prescribed in the regulations, including 
Members, Officers and partners. Currently of the 5 Member positions 4 of these are 
reserved to the Leader and Members of Cabinet, with a separate position allocated 
to the Labour Group. The chairmanship of the committee is also defined as a 
portfolio holder.  
 
The proposal is that the Elected Members of the committee is moved from being 
specifically prescribed by the Constitution to appointed by the Leader in line with the 
national guidelines and that the Chair of the Board is appointed by the Council. 
 
1. Recommendation(s) 
 
1.1 That the General Services Committee recommends to Council that the 

Constitution of the Council be changed to: 
 

1.1.1 Permit the Leader of the Council to appoint up to 5 elected Members to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

1.1.2 Permit the Chair of the Board to be appointed by the Council 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6





2. Introduction and Background 
 
2.1 The Council is required under the terms of the Health and Social Care Act 

2012 to form a Health and Wellbeing Board which fulfils the statutory 
requirements. The ambition behind the introduction of health and wellbeing 
boards is to build strong and effective partnerships, which improve the 
commissioning and delivery of services across NHS and local government, 
leading in turn to improved health and wellbeing for local people.  

 
2.2 This report reviews the provisions for the appointment of Councillor Board 

members to allow for greater flexibility in the appointment of suitable 
Councillors.  

 
2.3 The appointment of elected Members to the Board is determined by s194 of 

the Health and Social Care Act 2012. It prescribes that where the Council 
uses executive arrangements (as is the case in Thurrock) the appointment of 
Members to the Board is the decision of the Leader.  

 
2.4 The Council sets a framework through the Constitution for the number of 

Members and the appointment of the Chair of the committee. The current 
arrangement specifies that this will be the Leader and specific portfolio 
holders, together with a Councillor Member of the opposition group. This 
prescription does not reflect the underlying statutory provision, in that the 
Membership could be any Members of the Council appointed by the Leader, 
and need not include the Leader.  

 
2.5 It is therefore recommended that the constitution is updated to reflect the 

statutory position that the Leader is able to appoint Members to the Board 
without prescription.  

 
2.6 The provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requiring 

political balance on committees has been excluded from the operation of the 
Board.  

 
3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options 
 
3.1 The Council is obliged to operate a Health and Wellbeing Board, and 

accordingly to set its terms of reference within the constitution.  
 
3.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 prescribes that the appointment of 

elected Member members of the board is the function of the Leader of the 
Council.  

 
3.3 Whilst it could be seen as promoting a diversity of views and thought that 

there remains a political balance on the Board there is no legal power to 
require this or fetter the Leaders discretion in the appointment of members of 
the Board.  

 
4. Reasons for Recommendation 

Page 20





 
4.1 Further to the Leaders request the current restrictions on the exercise of his 

power to appoint the Board are proposed to be removed, the underlying 
statutory framework supports this proposal.  

 
5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable) 
 
5.1 This proposal is before the General Services Committee for consultation and 

consideration prior to being taken to Council in line with the Councils 
constitution.  

 
6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 

impact 
 
6.1 The Membership of the Board is important to ensuring that the Board is able 

to effectively and efficiently discharge its functions however this change does 
not fundamentally impact on the board’s outcomes.  

 
7. Implications 
 
7.1 Financial 

 
Implications verified by: Jonathan Wilson   

 Assistant Director - Finance 
 
The proposals do not alter the cost profile of the Board, and are therefore 
within existing budgets.   
 

7.2 Legal 
 
Implications verified by: Ian Hunt 

 Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 
The legal implications are detailed in the report. 
 

7.3 Diversity and Equality 
 
Implications verified by: Roxanne Scanlon  

 Community Engagement and Project 
Monitoring Officer 

 
The Council is under a statutory duty to ensure that equality and diversity is a 
key part of the decision making process of the Council. Therefore, attention is 
drawn to the importance of ensuring that appointments to committees are 
underpinned by appropriate training on the statutory equality framework. The 
introduction of essential member training provides the assurance that 
members of committees will be able to fulfil their obligations with a full 
understanding of equality and diversity issues. This is fundamental to the 

Page 21





Council being able to meet its statutory responsibilities. However, 
consideration must be given to members not completing the training or not 
attending, and the steps to be taken in these circumstances, once the 
member has been appointed. 
 

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder) 
 
None 

 
8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location 

on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright): 

 

 None 
 
9. Appendices to the report 
 

 None 
 
Report Author: 
 
Ian Hunt 

Assistant Director Law and Governance 

 

Page 22


	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	5 Response to Motion at Council 27 January 2021 - Request for Committee
	Item 5 - Response to Motion at Council 27 January 2021 - Request for Committee - Appendix A

	6 Constitutional Change - Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board

